ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 20, 2004
8:00 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghil |
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

MVEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 241
"An Act relating to optional exenptions from municipal property
taxes on residential property.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 337

"An Act relating to anatomn cal donor registries, to an
anatom cal gift awareness fund, to an anatom cal gift awareness
program and to notor vehicle licenses and registrations.™

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 373

"An  Act requiring warrants drawn by the Departnent of
Adm nistration against the state treasury to be negotiable
i nstruments.”

- MOVED HB 373 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 241

SHORT TI TLE: MUNI Cl PAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) CHENAULT

04/ 04/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 20, 2004



04/ 04/ 03 (H CRA, STA

05/ 06/ 03 (H CRA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124
05/ 06/ 03 (H -- Meeting Canceled --

05/ 08/ 03 (H CRA AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124
05/ 08/ 03 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

05/ 08/ 03 (H M NUTE( CRA)

05/ 12/ 03 (H CRA RPT 3DP 1INR

05/ 12/ 03 (H DP: KOTT, WOLF, MORGAN; NR: Cl SSNA
01/ 13/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102
01/ 13/ 04 (H <Bi || Hearing Postponed>
01/ 20/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
BILL: HB 337

SHORT TITLE: ANATOM CAL G FTS REG STRY
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) MCGUI RE

01/ 12/ 04 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H STA, HES, FIN

01/ 20/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
BILL: HB 373

SHORT TI TLE: STATE TREASURY WARRANTS
SPONSCR( S) : STATE AFFAI RS

01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H) STA
01/ 20/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

SHARALYN WRI GHT, St aff

to Representative M ke Chenault

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 241 on
Representative Chenault, sponsor.

behal f of

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor

Division O Community Advocacy

Department of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 241 and answered questi ons.
GARY SUPERMAN, Vi ce President

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough Assenbly

Ni ki ski, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 20, 2004



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 241 and answered
guesti ons.

REPRESENTATI VE LESI L McGUI RE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 337.

JILL STEINHAUS, Director of Devel opnent

Li f eCent er Nort hwest

Bel | evue, Washi ngt on

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behal f of LifeCenter Northwest
and answer ed questions during the hearing on HB 337.

BRUCE ZALNERAI TI' S, Executive Director

Life Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on behalf of Life Al aska
during the hearing on HB 337.

HEATH HI LYARD, Staff

to Representative Lesil MGuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behal f of
Representative McQuire, sponsor of HB 337.

DUANE BANNCCK, Director

Di vi si on of Mtor Vehicles (DW)

Department of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Described the DW' s role regarding organ
donations, during the hearing on HB 337.

KIM GARNERO, Director

Di vi si on of Fi nance

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that the Departnent of
Adm ni stration has no trouble with HB 337.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-04, SIDE A
Number 0001

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 20, 2004



CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, and Wyhrauch were present at the <call to order.
Representatives Lynn, Coghill, and Guenberg arrived as the
meeting was i n progress.

HB 241- MUNI Cl PAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of SB 36. ]

[ Tape didn't record for the first 30 seconds, but no testinony
was | ost.]

Nunber 0067

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 241, "An Act relating to optional exenptions from
muni ci pal property taxes on residential property.”

Nunber 0110

SHARALYN WRI GHT, Staff to Representative M ke Chenault, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 241 on behalf of Representative

Chenaul t, sponsor. She inforned the commttee that HB 241 has
two provisions, one of which is to give nunicipalities an option
to provide an exenption on residential property taxes. It does

not affect taxes levied in a service area. Under current | aw,
muni ci palities may exenpt up to $10,000 of the assessed val ue on
any single residential property. She Ilisted the five
municipalities that offer this exenption: Bristol Bay Borough

Kenai Peninsula Borough, Fairbanks Northstar Borough, North
Sl ope Borough, and the City of Valdez. The second provision is
to increase the tax exenption on real property from $10,000 to
$20, 000 for volunteer firefighters or energency nedical services
per sonnel . She deferred further statenents to Gary Supernan,
Vice President, Kenai Peninsula Borough Assenbly, who was
participating via tel econference.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked Ms. Wight who really wanted this bill
that is, what are sonme of the nore factual devel opnents
regarding why this bill came about. He asked why this bill is
com ng before the |egislature now as opposed to earlier.

M5. WRIGHT, in response, said the Kenai Peninsula Borough
Assenbl y passed a resol ution in 2003 t hat request ed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 20, 2004



[ Representative Chenault] submt this bill. She said she
t hought M. Superman is nore qualified to answer that question.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked M. Wight if the [five boroughs
previ ously nmentioned] had any comrents to nake about the bill

M5. WRIGHT renarked, "None that we've been apprised of." She
said the bill only gives the municipalities the authority, and
it is her understanding that everyone has to have a vote of the
peopl e before that can increase. She said it only gives the
municipalities the authority to do so.

Number 0380

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said he served on the Fairbanks Northstar
Borough Assenbly, and M. Wight is correct. He said he'd
recently had a discussion about this [sane subject], and in that
di scussion he was told the second part of this bill is inportant
because it wll provide the ability to give a reduction for
volunteer firefighters for taxation. He said this is no
di fferent t han what IS done for seni or [citizens].

Representative Holm said it is his understanding that Title 29
does not allow "us" to give any exenptions as boroughs, w thout
the state's authority. He remarked, "W really care about this,
but we care about it because of the fact that we can't do it
under Title 29, as | understand it."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said he has two issues with the bill, one of
which is the State of Alaska's "fiddling" wth municipal
exenpti ons. The other issue is in regard to the [possible]
| ong-term inpact to other communities by doing this. He asked

if the Al aska Muinicipal League (AM.) has |ooked at this from a
nore global perspective, and whether it has any analysis or
conment .

M5. WRI GHT answered not that she is aware of. She said one of
the prinme parts of this bill is that it gives incorporated
municipalities the authority to do this, not any of the
villages; therefore, it would inpact the state's urban areas.
Ms. Wight said passing HB 241 does not mandate that this
happen, rather it gives the local assenbly the authority to be
able to do this. She said Representative Holm correctly pointed
out that Title 29 does not "give us that authority" at this
poi nt . Muni cipalities would have the option to do it if there
is a tax surplus, if people have a disaster, or for whatever
reason, she expl ai ned.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 20, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked about increases in the exenption anounts.
He asked if there was any reason that those increased exenption
anounts were picked, and if there is a study that exists that
justifies those nunbers.

M5. WRI GHT deferred the question to M. Supernman. She said it
was not sonet hing the sponsor was involved in.

Nunmber 0660

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said that when the |egislature addresses the
permanent fund dividend (PFD), it never seens to be able to say
no to anyone who requests a PFD check to be sent out of state.
He asked why this kind of exenption is limted to firefighting
services and nedical services. He asked why this exenption does
not include people [in other capacities].

M5. WRIGHT stated her belief that the Kenai Peninsula Borough

already gives tax exenptions to volunteer firefighters. She
suggested this nmay be part of an enotional response to other
things that "we" have no control over. She deferred the

guestion to M. Superman, and she said she is not absolutely
certain of the facts behind this particular exenption.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if it was appropriate for |oca
| egi slators, local bodies, and local people to identify what
exenptions they may want as opposed to a legislature figuring
out what sort of exenptions may exist. He asked why this is not
opened up to everyone so the nunicipalities could decide.

M5. WRIGHT offered her belief that this was a choice that should
be made on a local level, and she said it was sonething that the
[ Kenai Peni nsul a Borough Assenbly] had requested.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if she was referring to the gl obal
exenption choice or just these specific exenptions.

M5. WRIGHT, in response, said these specific exenptions. She
said the supporting docunents and resolution were passed by the

Kenai Peninsula Borough Assenbly on 04/01/083. Ms. Wi ght
deferred the question about the reasoning behind the bill to M.
Super man.

Number 0900

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it seenmed to him that the nmain
thrust of the bill was to increase the anount of the exenption

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 20, 2004



although the fiscal note conpletely omts any discussion of
t hat .

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said this bill only has to do wth the
taxation of the borough and of people within the borough. He
said it has nothing to do with the state.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said the analysis in the fiscal note
omts any nmention of that. He said that, as a matter of policy,

when the admnistration prepares a fiscal note, it should
anal yze the piece of legislation in front of it. Representative
Guenberg said he is choosing this bill because it seens that

this particular fiscal note doesn't talk about the main part of
the bill.

Number 1020

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor, Division O Comrunity Advocacy,
Department of Community & Economic Developnent (DCED), in
response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch, said the fiscal
note from DCED is a zero fiscal note, and that it is his belief
that the Departnent of Revenue has a fiscal note that shows a
possi ble inpact of close to $2 nmllion. He said that i npact
cones from the possibility of all [five] muni ci palities
increasing the exenption from $10,000 to $50,000. He renarked,
"It could take about $2 million from oil and gas revenues that
currently go to the state and put them back" ... M. Van Sant
said this bill basically shifts the tax burden from residenti al
properties to other properties.

REPRESENTATIVE HOLM said it is his wunderstanding that the
shifting of the burden of that taxation is not specifically
enuner at ed because "we have no idea where they would be able to
do that or when they would do it at any given point in tine."

MR. VAN SANT, in response, said that's correct. He said [it
isn't clear] whether [nunicipalities] are going to increase the
exenption, and the only thing that the Departnent of Revenue
could do was give an estimte. He said if it was increased to
the total amount, it could [total] $1.8 million

CHAIR VWEYHRAUCH told M. Van Sant that the conmmttee did not
have [t he Departnment of Revenue's] fiscal note.

Nunber 1154

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 20, 2004



M5. WRIGHT said this issue is being worked on, and the $1.8
mllion fiscal note is not correct and was not supposed to be
di scussed today.

Nunmber 1188

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if there was anything at all in HB 241
that could set sone kind of precedent that could lead to the
elimnation of the current senior property tax exenption and/or
t he di sabl ed veteran's property tax exenption.

M5. WRIGHT said it is not the intent of this piece of
| egislation to do anything |ike that. She said to the best of
her knowl edge it's not attached, and it does not and wll not
af fect any senior exenption at all.

Number 1264

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, on behalf of Representative
Berkowitz who could not attend the conmttee neeting, if M.
Wight could please explain why there is a restriction on this
exenption with respect to funding special services in [lines 6-8
of the bill]. He asked for the reason behind the exenption for
speci al service areas.

M5. WRIGHT said it was her understanding that this exenption
woul d not affect the taxes for special services areas.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he understands what the bill does,
the question is why.

M5. WRIGHT said it is her belief that "we" can't do that by |aw
She deferred the question to M. Superman. M. Wight renarked,
"W can't, wthout an additional special vote, affect the
[mllage] rate that affects those special services areas.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said if that's the case, the question
is if [the legislature] is giving the nunicipality the power to
exenpt one type of tax, why not a tax for these other purposes
if they so choose. He said it would seemto be in line with the
policy behind the bill. Representative G uenberg said he didn't
see anything in Kenai Peninsula Borough Resolution 2003-035 that
woul d request this kind of an exenption for special services

He asked, "How did that get in here fromthis resolution.”

M5. WRI GHT deferred the question to M. Supernan.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 20, 2004



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH said the commttee was not going to go into the
fiscal note prepared by the Departnent of Revenue. He stated
his understanding that the fiscal note from [DCED] is what is
before the committee.

M5. WRIGHT said the last fiscal note is sonmething that was
brought up recently and is not sonething that [the sponsor] has
had the opportunity to discuss with the Departnent of Revenue.

Nunmber 1535

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON brought attention to page 2, line 4. He
said it was his understanding that in addition to the $50, 000
exenption in the first provision, there could be two additiona
exenptions per household of $20,000 each in the second
provi sion, which would be a total of $90,000 in property tax
exenptions that the municipality could apply.

M5. WRI GHT said she thought his understanding was incorrect, but

she would defer the question to M. Supernman. She said she
thought that was a cumulative effect, and if [Representative
Seaton's understanding] is correct, it's not the intent of the
bill.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would like it clarified that the
bill isn't saying that volunteer firefighters get $20,000 when
everybody el se gets $50, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said this goes back to "the fiscal note

that cannot be naned.” He said this seens to be the |ast
commttee of referral and normally if there is a fiscal note of
any consequence, the bill has to go to the House Finance
Committee. Representative Guenberg said it sounds like there

is a fiscal note in progress sonewhere. He said, as matter of
procedure, if [the fiscal note] subsequently becones attached
and is passed from the last committee of referral onto the
"floor," how can [the commttee] be sure that the bill would
then go to the House Finance Commttee. He said he had never
seen this [happen].

Nunmber 1678

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said Representative Lesil MQ@ire had a bill
| ast year that gave an exenption to the Peace Corp; it passed
out of commttee without a fiscal note and, before it went to
the floor, it picked up a fiscal note. He said [the bill] was
given a House Finance Conmittee referral and then went to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- January 20, 2004



floor; therefore, it has happened. He added that it happened to
one of his bills as well.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the |eadership would pick that
[bill] up and refer it.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said every tine it does "we" unfortunately get
anot her referral.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r emar ked, "W won't escape.”

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said it didn't escape in those two instances,
but he didn't know if anyone would guarantee it wouldn't escape
in a instance.

M5. WRIGHT said she appreciated Representative Guenberg's
concern about [the fiscal note]. She said [the sponsor] wasn't
happy when the Departnent of Revenue cane in with a fiscal note
three days ago, and she didn't think the departnent had a good
understanding of what this bill does. Ms. Wight said she
wasn't sure if it was clear [to the departnent] that it wasn't
very fair to [surprise the sponsor] with a fiscal note three
days before a hearing. She said although she deeply appreciated
the conmmittee's tinme, [the bill] needed to get a hearing in this
commttee, and that is exactly what was done.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH indicated that the reason for calendaring this
[bill] as soon as possible is because it gives the agency sone
time to do the work.

M5. WRI GHT remar ked, "Exactly."

Nunmber 1794

GARY SUPERMAN, Vice President, Kenai Peninsula Borough Assenbly,
noted that he had [testified last year] on SB 36, which is

basically the Senate's [version] of this bill, although it is a
little bit different. He said Representative Chenault fit the
verbiage in the bill that excludes the service area taxation.

M. Superman said he thought the reason that [HB 241] is nuch
nore conplete than [SB 36] is that the intent is to allow that
exenption to cone off the borough's general governnment services

mll rate levy. For instance, he said the N kiski borough has a
six and a half mll levy for general borough governnent
servi ces. In addition, there are nunerous service areas that
are tacked on to it. Those service areas throughout the
boroughs are instituted by a vote of the people. He said the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- January 20, 2004



intent is not to take those nuch needed service revenues and
deplete themfromtheir current budgets.

MR. SUPERVAN explained that the Kenai Peni nsul a  Borough
currently has a unique situation in conparison to sone other
boroughs; although he is not intimately involved in what the
general fund bal ances are in other boroughs. He said the Kena

Peni nsul a Borough currently has anywhere from $20-$23 mllion in
its fund bal ance. He noted that he expected those funds to be
depleted in the "not too distant future.”" M. Superman said the

reason that this [bill] was brought forward was to essentially
provi de another "tool" to work in the borough's own budgetary
process. He said the borough had seen an increase in taxable
assess valuation for the |ast 5-6 years.

MR. SUPERMAN said it averages a 5 percent increase per year wth
that valuation, which equates to approximtely a couple hundred

mllion dollars per year in total wvaluation. He said a
consequence of that is that there has been a considerable
increase in tax liability for those honeowner's wthin the
borough. Sone people have seen their tax rates, for all intents

and purposes, double within that tinme period, he explained. M.
Superman said as a reflection of that, the borough is seeing its
board of equalization rolls fill up nore as tinme goes bhy. He
said last year was the fullest schedule he'd seen, and he'd been
on the assenbly for two ternms, once in the late 1980s and again
nore recently.

Number 2030

MR. SUPERVAN said he thought there would be nore requests for
sonme kind of a tax relief at the local l|evel, which doesn't nean
if this bill is passed that it is a done deal. He said it
essentially brings it back to the assenbly to put it back out to
the public for a vote. He remarked, "Wether you think that's a

done deal or not if it went to a vote, | don't know, | don't
make assunptions anynore." M. Superman said he thought it
woul d becone a political debate at the assenbly |evel. He
reiterated his belief that the main purpose of the bill is to

provide the borough with another tool, and he said the borough
is seeing nore liability at the local |evel.

MR. SUPERMAN said a proposition passed this year for a hospita
in the borough, which will increase the [m|lage] another half a
mil. He explained that there will be a proposition going out
in a special election in March that will ask the people to vote
on a half a mll increase to fund co-curricular activities

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 20, 2004



within the school district. He said this is sonmething that is
outside the cap, and a lot of residents are beginning to see
some very harnful effects with their tax bills. M. Super man
said he had al ways been a proponent of trying to keep taxes at a
steady rate for a couple of different purposes. Miinly, he said
it helps economc growh and hel ps people to nove to the area

It helps people to raise their children in the area and put
those children in |ocal schools. He noted that the borough is
in desperate need of schools at this tine.

MR. SUPERMAN said a big plus is a good, fair tax rate, and if
t he borough does not have this tool at its disposal, he thought
residents woul d see sone horrendous clinbing in their tax bills.
He said the AML has supported this in the past, but he couldn't

say whether it was in the policy statenment this year. M.
Superman said Senator Gene Therriault had introduced a bill in
2000 that essentially had the same effect as this bill, and
al though that bill did not pass it is something that has been

"tossed around" for sone tine now. He noted that there had been
a few legislators who have tried to push it through

Number 2200

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked M. Superman if it is his opinion that
HB 241 allows these potential exenptions wthout affecting the
i ndi vidual |andowner's options of voting thenselves a tax
liability for whatever services that they want to pay for

MR. SUPERMAN i ndi cated he did not understand the question

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said Title 29 [provides] the [borough] wth
the opportunity to tax itself for whatever it wants done within
that service area. He indicated that [HB 241] is "over" the
br oad taxation power of a bor ough under Title 29.
Representative Holmsaid in this case "we're" not changing that,
or "we're" specifically saying in HB 241, which was not in SB
36, that service areas are exenpted from this limtation of
t axation.

MR. SUPERVAN said that is the intent here, although it may
require sonme additional verbiage to nmake that perfectly clear

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH called attention to the proposed |anguage in

lines 6-8 of the bill, and he asked M. Superman what "speci al
services" neant.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 20, 2004



MR. SUPERMAN said it is his belief that that's just an illusion
of the services that the service area provides, whether it's
recreational services, senior services, or fire services. He
said [the [ anguage] is just alluding back to the services.

Number 2309

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said it was his understanding, for
exanple, that if there was a half a mll in library service tax
or fire service tax, with the $50,000 exenption to the borough
tax, that would not apply. He asked if, at sone rate, a half a
mll in service area taxes mght equal or exceed the six-mll
bor ough property tax.

MR. SUPERMAN, in response, said correct; that could happen. He
said [Kenai] is very close to that in sone areas of the borough
NOW.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in regard to M. Superman's coment that
Kenai's reserve account will be depleted in the near future,
asked if the assunption is that if [revenues] didn't cone from
the state, [the Kenai Peninsula Borough] would be nore likely to
pass an increase in the mllage rate than an elimnation of this
$50, 000 i ndividual residential property tax.

Nunmber 2385

MR. SUPERMAN renmarked, "This, by no neans, is any cut at our
assessor within the borough - | think he does a fabulous job."
He said there has been an increase averaging five percent across
the board in the taxable assessed value wthin the peninsula
M. Superman noted that he is not speaking for the entire
assenbly, and he said he didn't know which way [the assenbly]
would go with regard to an increase in the general governnent

mll rate. He indicated he was unsure whether the assenbly was
going to add the extra mll this year. M. Superman said,
essentially, with that growth in "our" assessed valuation, it
somewhat mitigates the loss with this extended exenption. He

said this was passed unani nously on the consent agenda, and he
thought it was the assenbly's intent to try to keep the
residents of Kenai in the borough.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON brought attention to the fiscal note, and
he said it seemed to him as a resident of the borough, that if
the issue was put to a vote, he would be much nore likely to
increase the mllage rate, which is going to basically apply to
the oil assets within the borough instead of elimnating or

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- January 20, 2004



reducing the exenption on individual houses. He said because
M. Superman is anticipating the depletion of the [borough's]
reserve account in the near future, it seens that that is a
necessity, which would therefore shift the tax to the higher
valued properties - the oil properties - and then would
basically take that percentage away from the state's revenue

He asked if that assunption was correct.

MR. SUPERMAN said he thought that is an assunption that he is
really not making, although that is an assunption that sone
peopl e are making. He said that within the borough there is an

approximate $4 billion in assessed valuation, and just a little
over $6 million of that is "4356" property. There are oil-
related real properties that account for approxinmately 30
percent of that total. He said if the mll rate was increased,

with that in mnd, "they're" not going to be carrying the whole
burden of this.

Number 2757

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there is an inconsistency in M.
Superman's coment that there is nore liability at the |ocal
| evel and residents are |ooking for tax relief, but at the sane
time residents are voting [for] projects that increase their tax
bills. He asked if that issue is being addressed through this
bill.

MR. SUPERMAN said there are always inconsistencies with public
vot es.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH said the commttee would take this bill up again
in a week and woul d hear fromthe Departnent of revenue.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that, as a nenber of the House
Special Commttee on WAys and Means, he is extrenely concerned.
He said as he understands it, there is an inpact on this because
it will potentially shift the burden to property that would
otherwise be taxed by the state and would thereby reduce the
state's revenue at a time of a significant fiscal crisis in

Al aska. Representative Guenberg suggested that this bil
shoul d probably be heard by the House Special Conmttee on Ways
and Means, and he may mneke that reconmendati on. He said he

knows that M. Superman and [the Kenai Peninsula Borough's]
taxpayers do not want to pay taxes, which nobody does, but [the
| egi slature] has to | ook out for the state's interests too.

Number 2633

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 20, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON brought attention to the exenption
provisions in the bill. He asked if it is correct that the bil
coul d possibly provide a $90, 000 exenpti on.

MR. SUPERMAN said he thought the intent was to nmake the "lid" at
$50,000. He said he could appreciate Representative G uenberg's
comments that nobody likes to pay taxes, and he thought he was
speaking for the people [in the Kenai Peninsula Borough] who do
pay plenty of taxes. He said he personally pays plenty of taxes
on his home and a couple of businesses. M. Superman said the
intent is not to "divorce ourselves" from that liability and
that obligation, but people are beginning to cry out for sone
type of local tax relief. He said he can understand the
predi canent that the state is in, and if the state continues
off-loading to the lower levels, nore of these types of request

from the taxpaying constituency would be seen. M. Superman
remarked, "All we are asking for is to have this tool ... at our
di sposal . Whether ... it will be used no one knows at this

point; that is a political question.”
[HB 241 was heard and hel d. ]

HB 337- ANATOM CAL d FTS REGQ STRY

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 25.]
Nunber 2743

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 337, "An Act relating to anatom cal donor
registries, to an anatomcal gift awareness fund, to an
anatom cal gift awareness program and to notor vehicle |icenses
and registrations.”

Number 2758
REPRESENTATIVE LESIL MGURE, Alaska State Legislature, as

sponsor of HB 337, opined that, along with Representative Bruce
Weyhrauch's HB 25, HB 337 is one of the nost inportant bills the

| egislature will consider this year. The proposed |egislation
wi |l authorize the creation of an organ donation registry.
Number 2808

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, upon request of the chair, noved to adopt
the commttee substitute (CS) for HB 337, Version 23-LS1257\Q

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- January 20, 2004



Banni ster, 1/19/04, as a work draft. [There being no objection,
Version Q was before the commttee.]

Nunber 2820

REPRESENTATIVE McGU RE referred to the sponsor statenment and
noted that there are currently over 85 Alaskans awaiting organ
donations. Organ donations save lives, she said, and HB 337 is
an attenpt at nmaking the saving of lives easier. Currently,
when an individual goes into the D vision of Mtor Vehicles
(DW), he or she may fill out a donor card and receive a sticker
that is then affixed to that person's driver's |license. She
indicated that many people think that [the act of filling out
that card and receiving that sticker is all they need to do];
however, that act does not officially put themin the anatom cal
donor registry system She added that this w dely m sunderstood
fact is sad because it results in lives being |ost, because many

valuable gifts are not realized. Representative MQiire said
that unless people have their driver's |license or state
identification with the [sticker] on it wth themat the tinme of
their death, there is a good chance that their w shes will not

be realized in tinme for an organ donation to be made.
Nunmber 2874

REPRESENTATIVE MGU RE told the commttee that HB 337 mrrors
recent noves by the states of Wshington and Montana toward
creating a central registry that is kept by the DW. The way
this works, she explained, is that a person would go into the

DW and make an inforned consent signatory that wll recognize
his or her wi shes and automatically register himor her into the
organ donation system She clarified that this 1is an

i ndividual's choice and is conpletely voluntary. Representative
McCGuire outlined the follow ng choices an individual would have

concerning this issue: not register at all; get a donor card
and sticker w thout being registered; or register with Life
Al aska or online through LifeCenter Northwest. She expl ai ned

that Life Alaska is the organ donation bank for the state of
Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUIRE turned to the |anguage on page 4, [lines
6 and 7], which provides for a penalty for a person who
knowi ngly violates the dissemnation of this information.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE reveal ed that she has net with many fol ks
who have been the recipients of organ transplants who are |iving

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- January 20, 2004



heal t hy, happy |ives. Those people are grateful for this
| egi sl ati on, she said.

TAPE 04-04, SIDE B
Nunmber 2976

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE stated her belief that, as a result of
legislation [in the State of Wshington], approximtely 80
percent of those who have gone to that state's DW have deci ded
to add their nanmes to the organ donation registry. Currently,
90 percent of all the people who nmake sone indication that they
want to beconme an anatomical donor [do so at] the Division of
Mot or Vehi cl es. She clarified that many of us may think about
becom ng anatom cal donors, but actually going out to Life
Al aska or going online is "a whole 'nother step for many of us."
She indicated that many people think about this issue for the
first time when they cone into the DW, and [that's when they
make their w shes known]. She stated that one of the nost
i mportant things about meking these kinds of decisions is that
they be done with clarity, so that those who are left behind
understand what it is that their deceased |oved ones want done.
HB 337 would meke it possible for people to [sign] an inforned
consent in the DW.

REPRESENTATI VE MGU RE offered to answer questions from the
committee. She noted that there are others available to answer
guestions, as well. In particular, she said that she wants to
publicly thank Duane Bannock fromthe DW for his cooperation.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE added that HB 337 al so nakes a provision
for the DW to collect one dollar from those individuals who
choose to donate it for the purpose of pronoting the donation of

[ or gans] . She said this [dollar donation] will go a |ong way
t owar d: hel ping Life Al aska pronote awareness about organ and
ti ssue donation, helping in [the cost of] the preparation of the
docunents that will be dissem nated at the DW, and underwriting
the cost of the registry itself. She stated her hope that HB
337 will end up funding itself.

Nunmber 2828

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM questioned the functionality of the bill in

a state that is so vast and so difficult to get around in. He
stated his understanding that Life Alaska is a great program
and he revealed that he is a tissue and organ donor who has [a
sticker] on his license. He asked what the practical aspects of
this are in Al aska. He stated that, in Al aska, the odds of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 20, 2004



sonmeone getting a heart transplant with any speed probably would
be "next to nil."

Nunber 2788

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE stated that there is no better place than
Al aska for all the reasons that Representative Holm just cited.
Creating a central registry that can be accessed online is
sonething that "we're hoping to do here,” she said. Because of
the vast geographical diversity of Alaska, it is difficult to
access information. She stated that [the intent of the bill] is
to allow healthcare providers to go to a central registry in a
timely manner. As to the second part of Representative Holms
guestion regarding how likely it would be for an Alaskan to
receive a heart transplant from another Al askan, she said she
cannot speak to the specifics on that. However, she noted that
things |ike corneas and |liganents are widely used and given from
one Al askan to another. She stated that she thinks the prospect
of having that available is exciting.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE reenphasi zed that unless a person has his
or her driver's license on them at tinme of death, it is
i npossible for a healthcare facility to carry out that person's
wi shes, unless the deceased person's spouse, for exanple, knows
with absolute certainty that he or she wanted to be an
anat om cal [organ] donor.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM reveal ed that his brother died at 38, and a

boy in Houston, Texas, received "a kidney." He clarified that
his question had been nore about whether there are any
facilities in Alaska that do "these types of operations.™ He

stated his understanding that heart transplants are not done in
Al aska, for exanple.

Nunber 2646

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH shared that he knew of one instance where an
infant in Juneau [died] after birth and the heart kept another
infant in Texas alive.

Nunber 2602

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that, whereas Representative Hol m has

a sticker on his license, he has a card. He asked if it was the
sane thing.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 20, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE expl ained that the DW in Anchorage, for
exanple, gives the opportunity to get both [a card and a

sticker]. Both serve as one indication of a person's wsh.
That information is only on the license and is not [in a central
| ocation, such as Life Alaska]. She stated, "The |aw today does
not allow for that information to go anywhere." The proposed

| egislation is necessary to allow for the legal transfer of
information from a state agency to a nonprofit organ and tissue
bank. Representative MQiire repeated the previously nentioned
three options [for people choosing whether or not to be organ

donors] . She expressed her hope that people will choose to
register [with Life Alaska or online wth Life Center
Nor t hwest ] . In response to a followup question from
Representative Lynn, she reconfirmed that there is no I|inkage

between [having a card or sticker on a license] and "any kind of
system™

Nunber 2490

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if it is true that, currently, a person is
not considered an organ donor unless he or she opts in to the
system

REPRESENTATI VE McGUJ RE answered that's correct.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if HB 337 would change that to a person
being in the organ donor system unless he or she opts out.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE clarified that it is voluntary to opt in.
Furthernore, HB 337 would add a provision to allow a person to
remove him or herself from the registry. She noted that that
provision is found on page 3, [lines 5-10], and it read as
fol |l ows:

Sec. 13.50.140. Notification of cancellation. (a) A
donor whose notor vehicle docunent information is on a
registry shall notify a procurenent organization of
the destruction or nutilation of the notor vehicle
docunent or revocation of the gift under AS 13.50.050
in order to renove the donor's nanme from a registry.
If the procurenent organization that is notified does
not maintain a registry, the organization shall notify
all procurenent organizations that do nmintain a
registry.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE noted that there are other systens in
exi stence that nake it so a person is [automatically] in that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 20, 2004



system unl ess he or she opts out, but she enphasized that she
woul d never advocate for that regarding this issue.

Nunber 2444

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG suggested another nore prevalent and
w despread manner in which to get the nessage out would be to
include a way to register [as an organ donor] in the application
for the Alaska permanent fund dividend (PFD). He asked if
Representative McGuire would consider that.

Nunber 2320

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE stated that that possibility had been a
consideration and she is not opposed to it; however, she chose
to go forward with legislation that mrrored the nodels in
Washi ngton state and Montana, because they have been tested and
are easily understood. She maintained that it mght be easier
given that it is the second year of the Twenty-Third Legislative
Session, to get this legislation on the books and allow it to go
forward now, and consider "expansion" at a later date and tine.

Nunber 2313

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed to a letter from [Theresa L.]
Banni ster, [Legislative Counsel, Legislative Legal and Research
Servi ces], dated Decenber 23, [2003, included in the commttee
packet], which he said refers to Section 13.50.160, subsection
(d) - an "anti-sweep" provision. He turned to page 4 [of
Version @ and noted that the | anguage there says that the noney
can go into the fund wthout further appropriation, but there is
no anti-sweep | anguage contained therein. He suggested that
that nmay be sonmething that could be taken up in the House
Fi nance Comm ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE MGU RE responded that HB 337 does have a
referral to the House Finance Conmttee and she is | ooking
forward to that hearing to discuss the idea of the fund itself
and how that will work.

Nunber 2220

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to the issue of privacy, and
mentioned [AS] 13.50.110. He questioned how to ensure that
Al aska's privacy concerns wll be honored by those organi zations

that are not bound by Alaska State law, particularly when there
is communi cation with procurenent organizations in other states.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 20, 2004



He asked if [the legislature] <can nmeke a condition of
information and organ transplant transfer that if [other states
not bound by Alaska State law] participate with Al aska, they
wi || honor Alaska's privacy requirenents.

REPRESENTATI VE MGUI RE brought attention to page 2, line 19,
which read, "(b) A registry nust include only residents of this
state.” She noted that one of the reasons for the penalty
| anguage in the proposed legislation is over concerns regarding
the privacy issue. In response to a comment by Representative
G uenberg, she stated that one of the difficulties in a bill
such as this is to avoid m cromanagi ng or hindering the transfer
of information [when] the result [could be] a loss of life. At
the sane tine, she added, "You want to make it abundantly clear
that the privacy of the folks in the registry needs to be
mai ntai ned.” She defined it as a delicate bal ance.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated, "Nornally, when you create a
crime, ... it picks up a fiscal note."

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE opined that it would not be a large
fiscal note. She said she could not inmagine [that] nany people
woul d be prosecuted for this.

Number 2017

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH turned to page 1, [lines 11 and 12], which read
as foll ows:

Sec. 13.50.090. Short title. AS13.50. 010 -
13.50.090 [THIS CHAPTER] nay be cited as the Uniform
Anatom cal Gft Act.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if Alaska has a Uniform Anatom cal G ft
Act, and he asked Representative Mc@iire if she can address that
i ssue.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE answered that Al aska does have that Act,
which is contained in statute, beginning with [AS]13.50.010.
The [proposed] CS for HB 337 picks up a portion of that and
makes changes; therefore, [AS 13.50.080 and AS 13.50.090] are

changes to that Act. She indicated "13.50.100" and said, "In
fact that's new | anguage.” To clarify, she stated that this
bill would becone a part of the Uniform Anatomical Gft Act.

For the record, Representative MQ@ire read the revisor's note
under that Act.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- January 20, 2004



Nunmber 1859

JILL STEINHAUS, Director of Developnent, LifeCenter Northwest,
first addressed the issue of privacy and the transfer of

i nformation. She assured the committee, "W've been through
this process in both Washington [state] and Al aska in the 2003
| egi sl ative session." She noted two things: First, as
previously nentioned by Representative MQ@iire, there are
privacy concerns noted in the bill and a penalty for m suse of
the information, which would be strongly followed by the
procurenent organizations in Al aska. Second, [LifeCenter

Nort hwest] organizations are held to the sane privacy and
confidentiality standards as the hospitals; those standards are
known as the HPAA [Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act] standards, wunder the federal governnent.
There are stringent requirenents regarding the transfer of
information and [LifeCenter Northwest's] role in that. Privacy
concerns are of the wutnost consideration, she stated, and
Al aska's private information would not be shared with other
procurenent organi zations throughout the United States.

V. STEI NHAUS nentioned Representative MQiire's previous
comment that 85 individuals in Alaska are waiting for |ifesaving
organ transplants. On that note, she told the commttee that in
the last two nonths of 2003, [LifeCenter Northwest] facilitated
135 organ donors in the state of Washington. One hundred and
six of those donors were the direct result of the donor registry
system She added, "So, we've seen great success and a
significant increase in the nunber of |ives saved."

Nunber 1725

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH reveal ed that he does not have an organ
donor card, while Representative Lynn [has a card] and
Representative Holm [has a sticker]. He asked how the bill
woul d hel p current organ donors and how it would hel p people who
are not yet donors.

V5. STEI NHAUS responded that HB 337 will streanmine the process
for an individual who has already nmade that decision. Because
there will not only be the DW as an access point, but also Life
Al aska, LifeCenter [Northwest] and a web-based system people
t hroughout the community who have not yet nmade the decision to
donate organs and tissues nay obtain information from any of
those places and, in their owm tinme and space, can docunent
their wishes in a way that is easiest and nost accessible for
t hem

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- January 20, 2004



Nunmber 1615

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH offered a hypothetical situation, whereby a
person has nade a decision to be an organ donor, but his or her
spouse disagrees with that intent. He asked what HB 337 woul d
do to address that situation.

M5. STEINHAUS replied that that is not an uncommon situation.
She said the answer is twofold: First, if two people can say,
Wi t hout doubt, that the individual who has died had actually
changed his or her m nd and no | onger wanted to be a donor, then
the procurenent organizations would not nove forward with the
process. Second, if a spouse sinply disagrees with the now
deceased person's decision, but acknow edges that it was in fact
that person's decision to be a donor, then nenbers from Life
Al aska and LifeCenter Northwest procurenent organization wll
counsel nenbers of the famly and answer any questions that they
may have, and help that person feel secure in the decision that

the individual who has passed has nuade. This supports that
individual's wish and supports the famly through the grief
process. She stated that that has been found to be a very

successful [process], and often tinmes a famly's reluctance to
nove forward wth the donation process is |ess about a
di sagreenent with the decision to donate and nore about "a
di sagreenent wth the process of death."

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked Representative McCGuire if she disagrees at
all with Ms. Steinhaus's assessnent.

Number 1460
REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE answered, "I do not disagree, as a matter
of fact." She stated that these are delicate matters that occur

regul arly. She noted, "That is currently the state of the |aw,
regardl ess,” and she indicated that HB 337 would help clarify
t he issue.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH nentioned "the five w shes” and HB 25. He
described a real-life situation that occurred in Florida, where
a woman indicated the desire to donate her organs and she went
into a cona. The parents disagreed with the spouse's decision
and the legislature indicated that her feeding had to continue.
He noted "a lot of tines, bad facts nmake bad law.” He asked how
a situation would be dealt with when, for exanple, the husband
and sibling of a victim support that victims decision to be an
organ donor, while the parents do not.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- January 20, 2004



REPRESENTATIVE MGU RE noted that M. Steinhaus's previous
statenent regarding two individuals standing against a victinis
being an organ donor was only in the situation where those two
peopl e had proof that the victim had actually changed his or her
mnd, not in the situation where those two people disagreed with
the victims choice. She surmsed that in the forner situation
the two people would have to supply witten docunentation or
oral testinony that's "consistent with one another."

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH suggested that the factors that woul d be wei ghed
on a case-by-case basis would include: who is closest to the
person who [registered to be a donor], how recently was the
change in direction made, how credible is the kind of testinony,
what sort of characteristics do "these people" have, and how did
they get the information.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE said that's absolutely right.
Nunmber 1260

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what effect a person's having a
durabl e power of attorney m ght have.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE prefaced that she is not an expert in
this area of |aw, however, she offered that her gut instinct
was, "You better nake sure your durable power of attorney is
clear as to what matters they have power over." She applied
this to anatom cal donation and do not resuscitate orders, for
exanpl e. She added, "You certainly don't want them trunping
your opinion."

Nunmber 1186

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if people would just [be told about
registering] the next tine they reapply [for a license], or if
they will be notified [sooner].

Number 1170

REPRESENTATI VE MGUJ RE stated that Duane Bannock is a good
resource regarding this subject. She noted that one exciting
factor is that [DW] wll be converting to a digital Iicensing
system She explained that there will be a forced expiration on
that, so that "everybody wll have been through the system
within 10 years." She admitted that 10 years is a long tine.

She indicated that Life Al aska woul d be nmaking a public advocacy

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- January 20, 2004



canpai gn. She shared her hope that any discussions the
| egi slature has regarding HB 337 and any coverage thereof wll
"raise this to the issue,"” to let people know that the sticker
on their license and the card in their wallet would be better
served if they were part of the registry.

Nunber 1041

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG stated that it would seem if there was
a durable power of attorney or a living will and it was "later
in tinme than the organ donor card,” then "that would prevail."
He explained that, usually, in probate "it's the |ast expression
of the deceased.™

REPRESENTATI VE McCGUI RE agr eed. She stated that that's why she
thinks it's so inportant that a person be clear when executing
these types of indications of his or her wll. She said there
are only a few hours to get a donated organ to the person that
needs it, which is why this issue is so inportant.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined that, at sone point, [the
| egi slature] needs to consider whether there needs to be a
central registry for people's |ast w shes.

Number 0950

BRUCE ZALNERAITIS, Executive Director, Life Al aska, told the
commttee that that organization began a voluntary donor
registry in August of 2001, at which time it collected
information - mainly from the DW - through cards conpleted by

patrons and sent back to Life Al aska. He said that [the
information on those cards] was then entered by hand on a
conput er dat abase. That dat abase has grown since then and is

now exceeding 53,000 Alaskans in the voluntary donor registry.
He explained that although a registry exists, the nechanism by
which it's conpleted and nmintained is cunbersone. He stated
his belief that HB 337 would address "a streamining of that
effort.”

MR. ZALNERAITIS told the commttee that he has been [invol ved]
in organ and tissue donation [matters] for 28 years and has cone
to know both the tragic circunstances of |oss and the benefits
and successes of transplantation. He stated that it is known -
t hrough surveys, polls, and canpaigns - that nost people in the
United States would like to be donors. However, it is also
known that when famly nenbers are not aware of their |oved
one's wish at the time of death, there is not the sanme rate of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- January 20, 2004



consent "as would be the case in the first person," because they
are many tinmes reluctant to make a decision on behalf of that
| oved one if they do not know his or her wish. Having a first-
person consent registry [allows] individuals to affirm their
desire to be a donor, provides for readily retrievable
information through electronic neans, and lets those famly
menbers know the wshes of their loved one who has died
suddenl y. He added, "And it is this nechanism that we find is
one of the nost beneficial aspects of a registry.”

Number 0650

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG told the commttee that he wears a
|l apel pin in the shape of a ribbon, that stands for organ
donati on. He offered his understanding that that pin had been
put out by the federal Departnment of Health and Human Servi ces.
He asked if it would be possible to obtain a supply of the pins
to distribute to other |egislators.

MS. STEI NHAUS sai d yes.

MR. ZALNERAITIS responded that he would be glad to assist in
t hat request.

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG stated that [ having those pins
available for legislators to wear] would rem nd them "how good
this bill is."

Nunber 0534

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked how HB 337 would help streamine the data
collection effort.

VR. ZALNERAI TIS responded that the docunentation, as it

currently stands, involves an individual attending a health
fair, visiting the website and downloading a copy the
regi stration docunents, or going to the DW and filling out a
form that is then mailed back to Life Al aska. He reiterated

that a [Life Alaska] staff person is assigned to transfer the
witten data into a conputer database where the registry is
currently maintai ned. He stated, "Having this done at the sane
time as registration for licensure would allow this to be done
electronically and would facilitate a [streamined] approach to
t hat nmechanism"” He added that people who visit the DW woul d
be made aware of the possibility [to be an organ donor]. He
noted that, over 70 percent of the tinme, people believe that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- January 20, 2004



they are on a registry because they hold a card or sticker from
t he DW.

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH asked which departnent would have jurisdiction
over the program

MR. ZALNERAITI S responded that the collection would continue to
occur at the DW, but Life Al aska and LifeCenter Northwest, in
partnership, would actually nmaintain the registry. I n response
to a followup question by Chair Wyhrauch, he clarified that
the donor registration would be "within the organ and tissue
procurenent organization."

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said he would ask this question of a public
official of the State of Al aska.

Number 0203

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG stated that the concept of a central
health registry is an inportant issue that has trenendous
i nplications. He opined that it is about tinme that the people
of Al aska consider a voluntary health registry, where anybody
who is in a life-threatening situation could have registered his
or her last wshes, organ donation information, and energency
heal th information. He said that one nunber could be dialed
from anywhere in the state to access this information. He asked
M. Zalneraitis what he thinks of that idea.

MR. ZALNERAI TI S responded that he supports that. He stated that
any mechanism that could increase the availability and access to
information in an energency is nost desirable. Because the
registry is electronic and web-based, it is accessible night or
day, every day of the year.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if M. Zalneraitis is aware of
any governnent in the world that has done that.

MR.  ZALNERAITIS answered that he is not aware of such a
conprehensi ve registry. In response to a followup question by
Representative Guenberg, he said that although he is not a
conput er expert, he believes that the conputer technol ogy exists
to collect that information.

TAPE 04-05, SIDE A
Number 0001

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- January 20, 2004



CHAIR VWEYHRAUCH related his concern about [threat of conputer]
hackers.

Nunmber 0048

HEATH HI LYARD, Staff to Representative Lesil MQiire, Al aska
State Legi sl ature, answering questions on behal f of
Representative MQuire, sponsor, responded to Chair Wyhrauch's
previously stated question regarding who wuld be the

aut hori zi ng agency. He stated that the DW' s custoner service
| ocations would be the "point of interface" between those people
applying for notor vehicle registration or license renewal. The

DW operates under the Departnent of Admnistration, a point
that is identified "under the definitions."

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked what jurisdiction or interaction the
Department of Health & Social Services would have regarding HB
337.

MR H LYARD clarified that the definition of procurenent
organi zation has been changed in Version Q The previous
definition referred to an organization approved by the United
States Departnent of Health & Human Servi ces. He surm sed that
"therein lay the confusion.” He offered his understanding that
the Alaska Departnent of Health & Social Services "has any
i mredi ate interface.”

Number 0237

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to page 4, [lines 16-18], which
read as follows:

(5) " procur enment or gani zati on” nmeans a
person licensed, accredited, or approved under the
|laws of a state for the procurenent, distribution, or
storage of body parts;

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Hilyard if the State of
Al aska currently has | aws gover ni ng t he procur enent,
di stribution, or storage of body parts.

MR. HI LYARD offered that there is some governance under Chapter

13.50 [which is the Uniform Anatomcal Gft Act]. He stated,
"Essentially, this definition that's included is a definition
that | have worked on wth Representative Wyhrauch's staff
nmenber, wth regard to ... HB 25." He said HB 25 has sone

"interface® with HB 337, and [the sponsor] is "trying to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- January 20, 2004



maintain a certain degree of consistency.” He added, "So,
that's the reason we chose that particular phraseology.” He
suggested that Life Alaska or LifeCenter Northwest may have sone
recommendations with respect to restructuring that definition.
He offered his understanding that that |anguage was used in the
federal uniform Act.

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG asked if any part of HB 337 is
dependent upon the passage of HB 25, or vice versa.

MR. H LYARD offered his understanding that the answer to that
question is no. He suggested that there could be a situation
where revisors may have to make conform ng changes with respect
to statutory references after both bills pass; however, he
restated his understanding that "one is not required for the
ot her."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that Chair Wyhrauch and
Representative MQ@ire my want to enact and engraft sone
sections on each bill that would only take effect upon the
passage of the other bill, so that they don't have to go through
the revisor [process], which would delay [the bills] by at |east
anot her year].

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH said he would | ook into that. He noted for M.
Hilyard' s benefit that one of the fiscal notes acconpanying the
bill is from the Departnment of Health & Social Services. He
said it does not look like it's the intent of [HB 337] or "its
eventual effect” to cause a new fiscal note to be adopted by the
Department of Health & Social Services. However, he added, "It
probably requires a revisitation of this Depart nment of
Adm nistration fiscal note, because it appears with a fund in
here, which is probably why it has this [House Finance
Committee] referral.”

MR. H LYARD revealed that he had not had the opportunity to
review the fiscal note until this norning. He admitted that he
was confused with respect to the Departnent of Health & Soci al
Services fiscal note. He offered his understanding that [that
fiscal note] refers to the [original] bill version, with respect
to the procurenment organi zation definition.

Nunmber 0562
DUANE BANNOCK, Director, Dvision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),

Departnent of Administration, told the commttee that the DW is
pleased to do its little part in the big picture, as it pertains

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- January 20, 2004



to [HB 337]. He noted that Life Al aska has been asked to
interact with DW's scheduled training wth its frontline
workers, so that DW can be giving accurate information and

i ncreasing the nunber [registered]. M . Bannock stated that HB
337 will help the way DW processes informati on and the way that
data is transmtted back to Life Al aska. It also incorporates

sone physical changes, as a result of the new digital driver's
| icenses. He offered to answer questions fromthe commttee.

Nunber 0721
CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that HB 337 was heard and hel d.

HB 373- STATE TREASURY WARRANTS

[ Contains brief nmention of HB 109.]
Number 0730

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the l|ast order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 373, "An Act requiring warrants drawn by the
Departnment of Administration against the state treasury to be
negoti able instrunents.”

Number 0765

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nenti oned that HB 109 passed | ast year.
It was a bill that dealt with stale-dated warrants and "swept
these into the unclained property Act after six nonths." He

expressed his past and ongoing interest in the question of why
the State of Al aska uses the system of treasury warrants rather
than checks. He noted that in the |ate 1980s, there was a | ong-
standi ng di spute between banks and the State of Al aska, because
the latter took the position that treasury warrants were not
checks and could be imedi ately dishonored w thout any notice

"Sonebody” would have a warrant and would cash it, and sonmeone
in governnment would assume that they should dishonor it, and the
banks were "left holding hundreds of thousands of dollars.”™ He
remarked that "we" tried to get that inequitable situation dealt
with. He said, "The bill passed out of this commttee and, for
various reasons - mainly ny own limtations - didn't follow
through on that.” As a result, he said, "They had to litigate
this up to the Al aska Suprene Court.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited the case, which was NATI ONAL BANK
OF ALASKA, Nat i onal Banki ng Associ ati on, Appel | ant s, V.
UNI VENTURES 1231 and STATE OF  ALASKA DEPARTMENT  OF

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- January 20, 2004



ADM NI STRATI ON, Appel | ees. The court held that [warrants] were

negoti abl e instrunents. He noted that this case followed cases
from Loui siana and Nebraska, for exanple. In the majority of
cases it was held that warrants are negotiable instrunents and,
t her ef ore, are under t he Uni form Conmrer ci al Code.
Representative G uenberg described the bank as a holder in due
cour se. He said that, unless that [holder in due course] had

actual know edge that the warrant had been di shonored, the state
had to pay. He added that that was only a just and fair result.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that HB 373 sinply codifies that
case by stating that a treasury warrant nust be a negotiable
instrunment, and that that negotiable instrunment is defined under
the Uniform Commercial Code. He stated that he thinks HB 373
should not be a controversial bill, and noted that the House
State Affairs Standing Committee is the only commttee of
referral

Nunber 1034

KIM GARNERO, Director, Dvision of Finance, Departnent of
Adm ni stration, thanked the commttee for passing HB 109 | ast
year. She said it changed the way [the division] does business;
the stale-dated warrants are now being routinely paid by the
uncl ai mred property program She added, "You won't see any
stal e-dated warrants in your supplenental |anguage this year."

M5. GARNERO stated that HB 373 does nothing to change the way
[the division] does business. It has treated its state warrants
as if they were negotiable instrunments since the suprenme court
decision in 1992. She explained that that's why there is a zero
fiscal note. She said HB 373 sinply clarifies in statute the
suprenme court decision. In response to a question by Chair
Weyhrauch, she said the Departnment of Adm nistration sees no
trouble with [HB 373].

Number 1150
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report HB 373 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal

not e. [ There being no objection HB 373 noved out of the House
State Affairs Standing Commttee. ]

ADJ OQURNMVENT

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- January 20, 2004



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 9:51
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- January 20, 2004



